
 

CENTRAL ALBERTA SOCCER ASSOCIATION 

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING 

MINUTES 

January 19, 2026 

Virtual 

Attendance: 

Membership Present: Bashaw: Jackie Gibson, Bentley: Sandra Bolding, Camrose – Grace Doucet (arrived 
after the Bylaw vote), Central Alberta Men’s League: Andrew Hollingworth, Innisfail: Sarah Verburg, 
Lacombe: Jeff Mason, Penhold: Bart van der Loop, Ponoka: Lonny Behm, Rimbey: Christine Beerman,  
Rocky Mountain House: Oliva Atwater, Spruce View: Rolf van Benthem, Sylvan Lake: Kevin Breitkreutz, 
Wetaskiwin: Simon Kelm, The Dome (Associate Member) – Noah Welch 
 

Staff and Executive Present: President – Tracy Everett, 1st Vice-President: Rob McArthur, 2nd Vice- President – Andrew 
Vanderburg, Treasurer – Darla Preston, Director-at-large 1: Philip Ignacio, Director-at-Large 2: Tanya Breitkreutz, 
Executive Director – Tammy Olson 

Absent: Blackfalds, Clive, SC Central Alberta, Stettler 

Meeting Called to Order: 7:15 pm 

Quorum met: 13 of 18 Present (Camrose was not present for the By-Law vote, their delegate arrived late) 

1. By-law Approval (2026 revisions) – as attached 
a. The following amendments to the distributed document were unanimously approved by the members 

present through a Special Resolution. Motion: By-Law Committee Chair – Tanya Breitkreutz (Director-
at-large 2) 2nd Sylvan Lake (K. Breitkreutz). All in Favour. CARRIED 
 

• Article 14 Executive Board – The document outlining the By-law revisions distributed to the membership did not 
incorporate the updated designation of the Executive Board members within Article 14, although it was applied in 
other sections of the revisions. “The business of CASA shall be conducted by n Executive Board, which shall 
constitute the elected officers along with the Past-President of the Board who will act in an advisory capacity and 
have no vote” 

• Article 25 3) i) 2) – Proposed change rescinded to comply with Alberta Societies Act 
Motion: Motion: By-Law Committee Chair – Tanya Breitkreutz (Director-at-large 2) “The 2026 By-law revisions be 
accepted as distributed to the membership (November 24, 2025) with the revisions as approved by Special 
resolution at this meeting”  2nd Rimbey (C. Beerman). Twelve of the thirteen members present at the meeting IN 
FAVOUR. One OPPOSED. 92% Approved. CARRIED 
 

2. 2026 Revised Annual Budget - as distributed (December 1, 2025) 
Discussion. Fourteen of eighteen members are now present 
Motion: Spruce View (R. van Benthem) “I motion that the 2026 revised budget be accepted as presented” 2nd 
Sylvan Lake (K. Breitkreutz) . Thirteen in FAVOUR, One OPPOSED. CARRIED 
 
Meeting Adjourned: 7:50 pm 



Proposed Changes to By-laws 
 
 
Alpha-numeric formatting that does not affect the composition of the by-laws were updated to be consistent 
within the By-Laws. 
 
Article 2 a)  
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: 
 

 
 
Rationale: Extra Director at Large position added to allow for more involvement opportunity in the elected 
Executive Board for Active Members as well as to allow the President position to be only a tie breaker vote. 
 
 
Article 2 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: 
 

 
 
Rationale : To clarify the difference between the two boards and going back to original by-laws. Establish roles 
and voting rights for both groups clearly. 
 
 
 
 
 



Article 2 d) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: Changed “Board” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: To clarify the difference between the two boards. 
 
 
Article 2 e) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: Changed “Board” to “Board of Directors”.  
 

 
 
Rationale: To clarify the difference between the two boards. 
 
 
Article 7 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: Changed “Executive Board” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: Clarification of roles and authority. 



 
 
Article 7 c) ii) 
 

 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: Changed “Executive Board” of “Board” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 

                 
 
Rationale: Clarification of roles and authority. 
 
 
Article 7 d) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment: Changed “Executive Board” of “Board” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: Clarification of roles and authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Article 8.2  
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed the “Auditor” to “employees”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: Clarification of who will attend meetings. 
 
 
Article 8.3 
 

                      
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “Board” to “Executive Board” and “Board” to “Board of Directors” 
 

 
 
Rationale: To clarify the difference between the two boards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Article 8.3 a) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “will” to “is recommended to be”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: To allow for flexibility in meetings. 
 
 
Article 8.3 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Added “when possible” after “time and place”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: Provide flexibility for more Active Members to attend meetings. 



 
Article 8.4 a) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Added “The Board of Directors may also call one.” Removed “by itself”. 
 

 
 
Rationale: Clarifying language and authority of the Board of Directors.  
 
 
Article 8.4 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “three weeks’ notice” to “two weeks’ notice”. Added “whenever possible. If 
an immediate need arises, all Members will receive as much notice as possible. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Two week timeline is more standard. Additions allow for flexibility when immediate needs arise. 
 
 
Article 8.4 c) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “those” to “the Board of Directors present”. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Clarifying language. 
 
 
 
 
 



Article 11 a) 
 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “Executive Board” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Clarification of roles and duties of the two boards. 
 
 
Article 12 f) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “President” to “CASA President” and “Annual General Meetings” to 
“Board of Directors meetings. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Clarification language and allowing for all meetings not just the AGM. 
 
 
Article 14 a) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Clarified that the Past President will be an advisory position and no voting power. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  The Past President position is often vacant and should not included in quorum. 
 
 



Article 14 b) 
 

 

               
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “Executive Board” to “Board of Directors” and allowed for President of 
Active Members to choose their replacement if elected to the Board of Directors. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Clarified difference between boards. CASA should not be directing the inner workings of Active 
Members’ clubs. 
 
 
Article 14 e) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Removal from By-laws. 
 
Rationale:  Allows for options for position especially considering high board transition rates. 
 
 
Article 14 e) (new 14 e) due to removal of old 14 e) and numbering mistakes in original by-laws) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Updated the number of Directors at Large from 2 to 3 and added stipulation for no 
more than 2 elected Executive Board members to be from the same soccer club. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  An extra Director at Large and restriction of 2 per club allows for more participation from Active 
Members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Article 14 g) (new 14 g) after suggested amendments above) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Restrictions added for the Past President to be an advisor for a two year term and 
not a full voting member of the Executive Board. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  The position is often vacant and should not count towards quorum. 
 
 
Article 14 k) (new 14 k) after suggested amendments above) Not in current by-laws 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Added Associate Members to notification list and added the option for all members 
to attend Executive Board meetings as observers. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Allows for transparency in the workings of the Executive Board. 
 
 
Article 14 m) (new 14 m) after suggested amendments above) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “membership” to “Board of Directors”. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Clarification of language and authority. 
 
 
Article 14 n) Not currently in by-laws 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Added requirement for the minutes of Executive Board meetings to be made 
available to Board of Directors within 3 weeks. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Allows for transparency for members unable to attend Executive Board meetings and allows for a 
historical record. 



 
 
 
Article 15 a) & b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Change term limits to be 2 years from 3 years. Addition of a third Director at Large. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  This allows logical election cycle (even & odd years) and greater opportunity for Active Members to 
participate on the Executive Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Article 15 c) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Changed “majority of valid votes” to “more of the valid votes cast”. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Candidates may not get a majority vote given the number of Active Members voting. 
 
 
Article 15 4) from current by-laws 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Remove from by-laws. 
 
Rationale:  Remove due to redundancy with Article 15 c) as above (or Article 15 3) before alpha-numerical 
updates. 
 
 
Article 16 e)  
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Updated to show three Directors at Large positions instead of two. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  More ability for Active Members to become involved in the day to day running of CASA. 
 
 
 
Article 17 a) 
 



 

                                            
 
Suggested Amendment:  Clarifying language to specify Executive Board and Board of Directors obligations 
and powers. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  Executive Board authorities must be in accordance with the Board of Directors’ approval of budget 
and by-laws. 



 
 
Article 17 e) iii) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Added “or appointed member of the Executive Board” 
 

 
 
Rationale:  The Executive Director may be busy with other timely duties and this allows for the minutes to be 
handled quicker by another delegate. 
 
 
Article 18 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Clarification of procedure for filling open Executive Board positions. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  The Board of Directors alone may vote for Executive Board members to fulfill the term as set out in 
the By-laws. 
 
 
Article 20 b) 
 

 
 
Suggested Amendment:  Clarified board involved and added “within the budget and by-laws approved by the 
Board of Directors. 
 

 
 
Rationale:  The Executive Board must act within the approved boundaries of the Board of Directors. 
 
 



Article 23 b) 

Suggested Amendment: Changed “ the Board” to  “President of the Board” 

Rationale:  Clarifies who appoints the chairman. 

Article 25 e) i) 2) 

Suggested Amendment: Required vote to amend by-laws will require 2/3 of membership not 75%. 

Rationale:  It can be difficult to get involvement from a large portion of the Board of Directors for non-emergent 
meetings. 


	2026 January 19 Special General Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Rationale for CASA Bylaw Amendments - Nov 28 2025.pdf



